
Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 1 

 
Time Commenced 

 
The meeting commenced at 4.01pm. 

 
1.  Acknowledgement of Country 

 
In opening the meeting Cr Meehan provided an Acknowledgement of Country. 

 
2. Attendance and Apologies 

 
Attendance 
Cr Phil Meehan Councillor (Chair) 
Cr David Wright Mayor 
David Felsch Ballina Peninsular Residents Association 
Marilyn McIntosh Ballina Evening View Club 
Andrew Playford Ballina Coast High School  
Claudia P. Caliari Ballina Environment Society 
 
Council Staff in Attendance 
John Truman Director - Civil Services Division 
Joanne Cordery Secretary - Civil Services Division 
 
Observer 
Jason Shrieves Zoom 
 
Apologies 
Cr Nathan Willis Councillor 
Ken Johnston Ballina & District Citizens & Ratepayers Association 
Yvonne Scarrabelotti Ballina CWA 
Geoff Jacobs Ballina Bears Cricket Club (late apology) 
Cr Stephen McCarthy Councillor (late apology) 

 
 

3. Resignations/Changes to Memberships 
 
Information in the staff report was noted. 

 
4. Declarations of Interest 

 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

5. Deputations 
 
Nil  
 

6. Confirmation of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the previous meeting held on 20 July 2021 were accepted as 
a true and correct record.  
 

7. Business Arising from Previous Minutes  
 
Nil 



Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 2 

 
 

8. General Business 
 
Next A Ward Committee Meeting and Election Information 
 
The information in the staff report was noted. John Truman also advised that 
the caretaker provisions will apply for the November Council meeting and 
there would be no meeting held in December 2021. 

 
9. Business Without Notice 

 
i) Covid 19 Update 

 
John Truman advised the committee that vaccination hubs for the 
aboriginal community had been held at Cabbage Tree Island and were 
planned for Porter Park.  
 

ii) Compliments & Thank You 
 
Andrew Playford thanked Council for the works done in Lighthouse 
Parade, Suvla Street and River Street. Andrew also thanked Council for 
the trees and mulch for the annual tree planting day. 
 
Marilyn McIntosh congratulated Council on the works for the River Street 
Lane Duplication. 
 
David Felsch commented that the Carrs Bridge upgrade was really great 
and thanked Council for the relatively quick turnaround of the 
programmed Ferry Maintenance. 
 
Claudia Caliari congratulated Council regarding the changes at Shaws 
Bay. 
 

iii) Barlows Road 
 
Andrew Playford asked about the Barlows Road connection from River 
Street. 
 
John Truman advised that Barlows Road would connect with Flathead 
Lane and Tamarind Drive. 
 
Phil Meehan commented that the designs and studies had been 
completed and that works were ready to commence when funding was 
available. Council applying for financial assistance to complete this 
project. 
 

iv) Pop Dennison Park 
 
Andrew Playford asked about the timeframe for the works in Pop 
Dennison Park. 
 
 



Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 3 

 
 
John Truman advised that the works were ongoing and there were some 
delays with sourcing and delivery of the playground equipment due to 
Covid-19 restrictions. 
 
 

v) Airport Boulevard 
 
Andrew Playford asked for an update on Airport Boulevard. 
 
John Truman advised that stages one and two were complete but would 
not be open until stage three works for the connection to Corks Lane and 
North Creek Road were finalised. These works are anticipated to be 
completed in December 2021. 
 

vi) South Ballina 4WD Access 
 
David Felsch asked about the location of the concrete barriers blocking 
access to the beach entrance and whether they could be moved. He also 
asked if there was any opportunity for some beautification works to make 
the area more appealing. 
 
John Truman advised the location of the barriers was determined by 
National Parks. David’s request will be forwarded to staff to assess if there 
is an option to relocate the barriers. 
 

vii) River Drive - Safety 
 
David Felsch asked if Council could again look at the safety issues along 
River Drive and asked whether it was possible to have a centre line 
placed on the corners and for the speed limit to be reduced. 
 
John Truman advised staff will be requested to consider whether centre 
line marking is appropriate. John also noted that Transport for NSW is the 
authority responsible for implementing speed zones. Finally John noted 
that after action review procedures are completed following fatal 
accidents. The review from the recent accident did not result in road 
infrastructure recommendations.  
 

viii) Toilets for South Ballina 
 
David Felsch asked if Council could re-investigate the opportunities for 
public toilets in South Ballina. 
 
John Truman advised he would attach the previous reports regarding this 
item to the minutes. 
 
Attached for the information of the Committee is: 
 
 Extract from Delivery Program Report to June 2018 Ordinary Council 

Meeting. 
 Copy of Report to November 2018 Ordinary Council Meeting. 



Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 4 

 
At the June 2018 Ordinary meeting, Council resolved: 
 
That Council receive a report on the merits of a six month trial of a 
temporary toilet at the Keith Hall boat ramp. 
 
At the November 2018 Ordinary meeting, Council resolved: 
 
That Council undertake further investigation and liaison with the 
community (including whether alternate sites are preferred) regarding the 
proposal to implement a toilet facility in the South Ballina area, including 
the possibility of a temporary facility. 
 
In response to the second resolution staff met with the Ballina Peninsular 
Residents Association representatives to consider the options, 
unfortunately a reasonable solution was not able to be identified for the 
reasons examined in the reporting. 
 

ix) New Policy - Biodiversity Compensatory Habitat and Offsets 
 
Claudia Caliari reported on the Ballina Environment Society’s position 
regarding this policy. 
 
Cr Phil Meehan noted that the BES had provided a submission to this 
policy and it had been included in the information reported to Council. 
 

x) Update from Mayor 
 
Cr David Wright advised he supported the State Government’s position on 
COVID double vaccinations and it was great to see the number of 
community members taking up vaccines. 
 
Cr Wright commented on how wonderful it was to see the community 
using the coastal shared paths. 

 
10. Council Documents on Exhibition 

 
The list of previously advertised documents was noted by the Committee.  
 

11. Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting is scheduled for 4.00pm on Tuesday, 9 November 2021. 
 
 

12. Meeting Close 
 
There being no further business, the meeting closed at 5.00pm. 

  



Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 5 

 

 
  



Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 6 

 

 
  



Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 7 



Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 8 



Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 9 



Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 10 



Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 11 



Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 12 



Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 13 

 



Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 14 

  



Minutes of the ‘A’ Ward Committee Meeting  
Held 14 September 2021 

ZOOM Meeting 
 

Ballina Shire Council   Page 15 

 

 


